
Town of Cornelius
Planning Board/Board of Adjustment

Agenda
January 13, 2020

6:30 PM
Assembly Room

Pre-Meeting

A. 5:30pm Training Room 204

1. Call To Order

2. Determination of Quorum

3. Approval of Minutes

A. December 9th, 2019 Minutes

4. Consideration of Approval

A. REZ 10-19 Washam Potts Townhomes

B. Built Upon Area Averaging Certificate Applications

5. Old Business

6. New Business

7. Next Meeting

8. Adjournment



 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 
 Print

Date of Meeting: January 13, 2020

To: Chair and Planning Board Members 

From: Summer Smigelski, Planning Admin. 

Action Requested:

Staff will pick up on the School of Government Training Module where we left off. The training will begin at 5:30pm,
dinner provided. We will take a break at 6:20pm and then reconvene for the regular agenda at 6:30pm in the
Assembly Room.

Manager's Recommendation:

Conduct Training

 

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description: Type:
No Attachments Available
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REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 
 Print

Date of Meeting: January 13, 2020

To: Chair and Planning Board Members

From: Summer Smigelski, Planning Admin.

Action Requested:

Review and Approve 

Manager's Recommendation:

Approval

 

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description: Type:

 Minutes_12092019_Draft_-
_Copy.docx

December 9th, 2019 Minutes Backup Material
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        Minutes 

TOWN OF CORNELIUS PLANNING BOARD 
Assembly Room 

December 9th, 2019 
6:30 p.m. 

 
 
Members Present Members Absent Staff Present 
Phil Bechtold, Alternate 
Joseph Dean 
Hardy McConnell 
Edward Marxen, Alternate 
Danielle Miller  
Susan Johnson 
Lee Peterson, Vice Chair 
 

Keith Eicher, Chair        
Michael Osborne 
Cameron Bearder, Alt.  
 

Summer Smigelski, Admin. Assistant 
Aaron Tucker, Assistant Planning 
Director 
Becky Partin, Senior Planner 
Monterai Adams, Planner 
Gary Fournier, Planner 
Catherine McElearney, Planner 
 

   

 
VISITORS 
See Sign-In Sheet 
 
DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
Vice Chair Peterson called the Planning Board meeting to order at 6:29 pm and noted there was 
a quorum present. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Mr. Bechtold made a motion of approval for the November 12th, 2019 Minutes. Mr. Dean 
seconded. All in favor, motion approved.  
 
In Favor:  Ms. Johnson, Mr. Dean, Mr. Peterson                                 Opposed:  None 
                 Mr. McConnell, Mr. Marxen, Mr. Bechtold, 
                 Ms. Miller 
                
VAR 06-19 Donald Morris 21207 Potts Street 
Vice Chair Peterson asked for a motion to open the public hearing. 
 
Mr. McConnell made a motion to open the public hearing. Ms. Johnson seconded. All in favor, 
motion approved. 
 
In Favor:  Ms. Johnson, Mr. Dean, Mr. Peterson                                 Opposed:  None 
                 Mr. McConnell, Mr. Marxen, Mr. Bechtold, 
                 Ms. Miller 
 
Vice Chair Peterson Reads: 
 
 What is a Variance 
A variance is a request to deviate from current zoning requirements. If granted, it permits 
the owner to use his land in a way that is ordinarily not permitted by the zoning 
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ordinance. It is not a change in the zoning law, but a waiver from the requirements of the 
zoning ordinance. 
 
This hearing is a quasi-judicial evidentiary hearing. That means it is like a court hearing. 
State law sets specific procedures and rules concerning how this board must make its 
decision. These rules are different from other types of land use decisions like rezoning 
cases.   
 
The board’s discretion is limited. The board must base its decision upon competent, 
relevant, and substantial evidence in the record. A quasi-judicial decision is not a 
popularity contest. It is a decision constrained by the standards in the ordinance and 
based on the facts presented. If you will be speaking as a witness, please focus on the 
facts and standards, not personal preference or opinion. 
 
Participation is limited. This meeting is open to the public. Everyone is welcome to 
watch. Parties with standing have rights to participate fully. Parties may present 
evidence, call witnesses, and make legal arguments. Parties are limited to the applicant, 
the local government, and individuals who can show they will suffer special damages. 
Other individuals may serve as witnesses when called by the board. General witness 
testimony is limited to facts, not opinions. For certain topics, this board needs to hear 
opinion testimony from expert witnesses. These topics include projections about impacts 
on property values and projections about impacts of increased traffic. Individuals 
providing expert opinion must be qualified as experts and provide the factual evidence 
upon which they base their expert opinion.  
 
Witnesses must swear or affirm their testimony. At this time, we will administer the oath 
for all individuals who intend to provide witness testimony. 
                
Vice Chair Peterson called forward anyone wishing to testify to be sworn in by the Board 
Secretary.  
 
Ms. Smigelski swore in applicant’s and Town staff. 
 
Vice Chair Peterson asked for board members to disclose if they have been by the 
property. No board members have.  
 

Ms. McElearney: “Good evening board. Catherine McElearney, Town Planner presenting to 
your variance 06-19. The address at the property is 21207 Potts Street. Our applicant is Donald 
S. Morris, Jr. P.O. Box 2056, Davidson, North Carolina 28036. Tax Parcel ID is 00320510. The 
current zoning on this property is neighborhood residential (NR). The Applicant is seeking a 
variance from Land Development Code 5.5.2.C to have a five (5) foot side yard setback for an 
accessory structure 12’ x 20’.  The subject property is located at 21207 Potts Street along the 
current alignment of Potts Street. Staff will present testimony that covers the following basic 
facts and will introduce the Town exhibits into evidence: The subject property is within the Town 
of Cornelius zoning jurisdiction and is zoned Neighborhood Residential (NR). The property is 
shown on: Zoning Map as Exhibit A, Aerial Vicinity Map as Exhibit B, and Aerial Property Map 
as Exhibit C. The Variance Application as submitted by the Applicant is shown as Exhibit D. The 
Proposed Accessory Structure Location is shown as Exhibit E. Land Development Code 5.5.2.C 
referenced in the Variance Application is shown as Exhibit F. The Land Development Code 
5.5.4 Table of Dimensional Requirements is shown as Exhibit G. The Planning Department took 
a photograph of the property which is shown as Exhibit H. The Planning Department is including 
information from NCDOT U-5873 Potts-Highway 115 project for reference in Exhibit I.  The 
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realignment of Potts Street for NCDOT Project U-5873 Potts-Highway 115 will impact the 
western portion of his rear yard. Circled in blue is the current owner of Potts, circled in blue on 
the right is the future alignment from the right of way and his parcel is outlined in red. That 
concludes staff presentation.” 

Vice Chair Peterson: “Any questions for Catherine?” 
 
Mr. Dean: “Yeah, go back to the previous screen. The new alignment of Potts Street is taking 
Mr. Morris, apart of his, like a third of his property in the rear?” 
 
Ms. McElearney: “I don’t have the exact calculation but yes. This is his property and then this 
back area is where the new alignment is going.” 
 
Mr. McConnell: “Your saying its coming up to about there?” 
 
Ms. McElearney: “Yes.” 
 
Vice Chair Peterson: “So this creates two front yards for the property owner?” 
 
Ms. McElearney: “Correct. According to our code when he has the other road running he will 
then have two road frontages.” 
 
Vice Chair Peterson: “Our code states that you cannot have a structure built in the front yard.” 
 
Ms. McElearney: “Correct, or an accessory structure. “ 
 
Ms. Johnson: “Do you have a picture where the proposed location is?” 
 
Ms. McElearney: “Yes, the proposed location is along the side of his house. He is showing a 
four-foot clearance from the house. Because of the angle of the house and the property it will 
get to five feet in the rear of that accessory structure if its placed there.”  
 
Vice Chair Peterson: “The four feet clearance that is a code?” 
 
Ms. McElearney: “I am unfamiliar with the code for (Inaudible).” 
 
Mr. Tucker: “Just to give some information on that. There are minimum separation requirements 
for accessory structures by the building code. I wouldn’t quote me on this, but I think its two, 
three feet. There are requirements but this one is set at four feet, which isn’t at the minimum for 
Mecklenburg County building code. At four feet, the idea is it gives them enough room to walk 
between and maintain both sides of both structures.” 
 
Mr. Dean: “The front part, the eleven feet that’s like the front corner, eleven feet to the property 
line that’s perfectly sufficient?” 
 
Ms. McElearney: “Correct.” 
 
Mr. Dean: “Its just really we are talking about the five feet on the back corner.” 
 
Vice Chair Peterson: “On the lot to the right of this, that is owned by a commercial company, is 
that correct?” 
 
Ms. McElearney: “Currently, it is.” 
 
Vice Chair Peterson: “So they’re not encroaching as you would in a neighborhood, they’re not 
encroaching on a neighbor’s property? Are there any plans, because this section is in Cornelius 
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the rest in Davidson, are there plans for development of that section in Cornelius that we know 
at this point?” 
 
Ms. McElearney: “I personally have not reviewed any plans for this property adjacent to the 
homeowner’s property.” 
 
Mr. Dean: “Does anyone know if that’s still in litigation?” 
 
Mr. Tucker: “As far as I know, I’m sure it could have changed by now. I will point out what we 
are referring to when we say the neighboring property. The large property back to the right, the 
Town limits are somewhere along those lines and that property is one parcel and most of it is in 
Davidson and the other part is in Cornelius. As of now the last I have heard there was plans for 
development on that property in Davidson and I believe it was some sort of higher density 
residential, maybe apartments and nothing was shown on the Cornelius site, it was to be left 
undisturbed as of now so we haven’t seen any proposals for development for the Cornelius side 
but I believe they are in a lawsuit with the Town of Davidson, so nothing is moving forward. I 
think that is still happening.” 
 
Mr. McConnell: “Can that unit be brought towards the street front just a little further? It would 
give some more access to the back, in case of an emergency.” 
 
Ms. McElearney: “I would assume that could be considered a possibility.” 
 
Ms. Johnson: “Is it a storage unit or is it a garage?” 
 
Mr. Tucker: “It will be a garage, small garage, but he will store a car inside.” 
 
Ms. Johnson: “Seems to me that their doing the new Potts Road on the back end then he now 
has two front yards so there is really no other place to put this structure. Even if you pull it up a 
little its still likely not going to be ten feet.” 
 
Mr. Dean: “Right, I would be more concerned if there was a residential parcel next to his yard.” 
 
Mr. McConnell: “It still could be a residential, it’s still zoned residential.” 
 
Ms. Johnson: “It says fence, is there in fact a fence on the side of that property?” 
 
Mr. Tucker: “I believe there is a chain link fence that goes down that side.” 
 
Vice Chair Peterson: “Any questions for Catherine? Okay, hearing none, will the applicant 
please come forward.” 
 
Applicant: “I am Donald Morris. I live 21207 Potts Street, Cornelius.” 
 
Vice Chair Peterson: “How long have you lived in that property?” 
 
Mr. Morris: “I bought that house in 2000.” 
 
Vice Chair Peterson: “At that time do you know what the setbacks were?” 
 
Mr. Morris: “Yes, it was a five-foot setback.” 
 
Vice Chair Peterson: “Basically it changed in 2018.” 
 
Mr. Morris: “One other point, there was a regulation (Inaudible) not in the side yard. Wayne gave 
me approval to put side of the house so then the question was the setback. If I had room I would 
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build two car garages because I got two cars but there is only room for one and one of them I 
really need to protect.” 
 
Vice Chair Peterson: “Basically prior to 2018 you could have applied for this and you wouldn’t 
even be here in front of us right now?” 
 
Mr. Morris: “Yes sir. (Inaudible) At my age if I have to put that thing a hundred feet back behind 
the house (Inaudible).” 
 
Mr. Dean: “I think it’s also important to note that Mr. Morris will also be living on a road that 
deadens into the new roundabout. There will not be an access. You will come down Potts and 
where one of those last houses in Davidson is, that’s where the road is going to veer off to the 
right, so his property is going to be on basically a deaden road.” 
 
 Vice Chair Peterson: “Any other questions? Any public comments? At this time I would like to 
ask for a motion to close the public hearing.” 
 
Mr. Bechtold made a motion to close the public hearing. Ms. Johnson seconded. All in favor, 
motion approved. 
 
In Favor:  Ms. Johnson, Mr. Dean, Mr. Peterson                                 Opposed:  None 
                 Mr. McConnell, Mr. Marxen, Mr. Bechtold, 
                 Ms. Miller 
 
Board Deliberation 
 
Finding #1 
Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the ordinance. It shall not be 
necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made 
of the property.  
 
Mr. McConnell: “I move that this has been met. It is a hardship for a couple of reasons, first, the 
property at the time of purchase was five feet and now there is just a corner of it also at this time 
the area is going to change. There is no other property that is going to be impacted for this.” 
 
Mr. McConnell made a motion that Finding of Fact #1 has been met. Mr. Bechtold seconded. All 
in favor, Motion approved.” 
 
In Favor:  Ms. Johnson, Mr. Dean, Mr. Peterson                                 Opposed:  None 
                 Mr. McConnell, Mr. Marxen, Mr. Bechtold, 
                 Ms. Miller 
    
Finding #2 
The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or 

topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting 

from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the public, may not be the basis for 

granting a variance.  

Mr. Dean: “I think that the conditions, the hardship results from conditions that are both peculiar 

to the property, location and the topography all come into play there.” 

Mr. Dean made a motion that Finding of Fact #2 has been met. Ms. Johnson seconded. All in 
favor motion, motion approved.” 
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In Favor:  Ms. Johnson, Mr. Dean, Mr. Peterson                                 Opposed:  None 
                 Mr. McConnell, Mr. Marxen, Mr. Bechtold, 
                 Ms. Miller 
               
Finding #3 
The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of 

purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a 

variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship.  

Ms. Miller: “Since the law changed and the code has changed since then, I would say that 

finding three has been met because the hardship is not created by the applicant.” 

Ms. Miller made a motion Finding of Fact #3 has been met. Mr. Bechtold seconded. All in favor, 
Motion approved.” 
 
In Favor:  Ms. Johnson, Mr. Dean, Mr. Peterson                                 Opposed:  None 
                 Mr. McConnell, Mr. Marxen, Mr. Bechtold, 
                 Ms. Miller 
 
Finding #4 
The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such 
that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved. 
 
Ms. Johnson: “I find that finding number four has also been met and that the requesting 
variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance.” 
 
Ms. Johnson made a motion that Finding of Fact #4 has been met. Mr. Dean seconded. All in 
favor, motion approved.” 
 
In Favor:  Ms. Johnson, Mr. Dean, Mr. Peterson                                 Opposed:  None 
                 Mr. McConnell, Mr. Marxen, Mr. Bechtold, 
                 Ms. Miller 
 
Mr. Bechtold made a motion to approve VAR 06-19. Mr. McConnell seconded. All in favor 
motion approved. 
 
In Favor:  Ms. Johnson, Mr. Dean, Mr. Peterson                                 Opposed:  None 
                 Mr. McConnell, Mr. Marxen, Mr. Bechtold, 
                 Ms. Miller 
 
REZ 11-19 O’Reilly Auto Part Store 
Mr. Fournier presented REZ 11-19 to the board. Lawrence Development, Inc. is requesting to 
rezone and develop .99 acres of property located at 19425 Statesville Road.  The property is 
currently zoned HC (Highway Commercial). Land use plan allows for general commercial services 
as a primary land use. The Applicant proposes to build a 7,200-sf commercial building for retail 
auto part sales. 
 
Staff recommends approval of this project subject to the following conditions: 
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1. Town approval is contingent on review and approval by other applicable local, state and 
federal agencies. 

2. The development shall comply with all other applicable requirements of the Town of 
Cornelius Land Development Code. 

3. Town approval incorporates and shall comply with any and all submittals in the case file 
and correspondence presented to the board in support of this application, including, but 
not limited to the following:  The site/sketch plan, architectural elevations, and any other 
information related to this case or improvements recommended by the Town and/or 
other agencies. 

 
After discussion the board agrees to recommend approval of all three items. 
 
Mr. Bechtold made a motion to recommend approval for REZ 11-19 O’Reilly Auto Part Store. 
Ms. Johnson seconded. All in favor, motion approved.  
 
In Favor:  Ms. Johnson, Mr. Dean, Mr. Peterson                                 Opposed:  None 
                 Mr. McConnell, Mr. Marxen, Mr. Bechtold, 
                 Ms. Miller 
 
TA 02-19 Breweries  
Ms. Partin presented TA 02-19 to the board. Earlier this year, Governor Cooper signed the "Craft 
Beer Distribution and Modernization Act" into law. The law allows breweries to produce and sell 
up to 100,000 barrels annually. 

In accordance with the new law, LDCAB and staff are recommending the following changes to 
the definitions, use table, and uses permitted with conditions in the Land Development Code: 

• Modify the definition of a microbrewery to be an establishment where up to 100,000 
barrels of beer and malt beverages are made on the premises and sold/distributed. The 
current limit is 15,000 barrels. 

• Modify the definition of a large brewery to be an establishment where 100,000 or more 
barrels of beer and malt beverages are made on the premises and sold/distributed. 

• Remove large brewery as a use allowed in Business Campus. 
 
After discussion the board agrees to recommend approval for the changes presented. 
 
Mr. McConnell made a motion to recommend approval for TA 02-19. Mr. Bechtold seconded. 
All in favor, motion approved.  
 
In Favor:  Ms. Johnson, Mr. Dean, Mr. Peterson                                 Opposed:  None 
                 Mr. McConnell, Mr. Marxen, Mr. Bechtold, 
                 Ms. Miller 
 
Built Upon Area Averaging Certificate Application  
Ms. Adams presented BUA #1 20506 Hansels Way and Mr. Fournier presented BUA #2 16602 
Flying Jib Road to the board. 
 
 
After discussion the board made a motion to approve both applications. 
 
Mr. Bechtold made a motion to approve BUA #1 20506 Hansels Way and BUA #2 116602 
Flying Jib Road. Mr. Dean seconded. All in favor, motion approved. 
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In Favor:  Ms. Johnson, Mr. Dean, Mr. Peterson                                 Opposed:  None 
                 Mr. McConnell, Mr. Marxen, Mr. Bechtold, 
                 Ms. Miller 
 
                
NEXT MEETING 
Monday, January 13th, 2020  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. McConnell made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:23 p.m.  Ms. Johnson second. All in 
favor and motion approved. 
 
In Favor:  Ms. Johnson, Mr. Dean, Mr. Peterson                                 Opposed:  None 
                 Mr. McConnell, Mr. Marxen, Mr. Bechtold, 
                 Ms. Miller 
 
Respectfully Submitted: 
 
 
______________________  __________      ______________________    _________ 
Lee Peterson                 Date           Summer Smigelski          Date 
Vice Chair                    Secretary  



 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 
 Print

Date of Meeting: January 13, 2020

To: Planning Board Members 

From: Monterai Adams, MPA- Planner

Action Requested:

Matt Gallagher of Blue Heel Development, LLC is seeking to develop 27 single family attached homes (townhomes)
on the 6.8 acre property located at 10212 Washam Potts Road. The townhomes are proposed to each have 4
bedrooms and 3 baths.

Manager's Recommendation:

Approval with conditions.

 

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description: Type:

 rezoning_application_signed_CURRENT.pdf Application Backup Material
 Blueheel_Washam_Potts_Zoning.pdf Zoning Map Backup Material
 Blueheel_Washam_Potts_LU.pdf Land Use Map Backup Material
 Blueheel_Washam_Potts_Vicninty.pdf Vicinity Map Backup Material
 Blueheel_Washam_Potts_Property.pdf Property Map Backup Material
 REZ_10-

19(PB)_Washam_Potts_Townhomes_Staff_Report.pdf
REZ 10-19 Staff Report Backup Material

 Washam_Potts_Townhomes_Rezoning_p3.pdf Site Plan Backup Material
 Washam_Potts_Townhomes_Rezoning_p5.pdf Color Site Plan Backup Material
 PB_Consistency_Statement_REZ_10-

19_(Washam_Potts_Townhomes).pdf
Consistency Statement Backup Material
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NC Engineering Board License #:  C-3781 

NC Landscape Architecture Board License #:  C-399 

  

 

Written Summary 

August 28, 2019 
 
The existing parcel is vacant. This project proposes 27 townhome units each with 4 

bedrooms and 3 baths. There will be 2 parking spaces per unit for a total of 54 parking 

spaces. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Jay Henson, ASLA 

HensonFoley 

http://www.hensondesigninc.com/
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REZ 10-19 

Washam Potts Townhomes 
 

Conditional Zoning Request 

 

Planning Board Meeting 

January 13, 2020 

 

 

OWNER/APPLICANT: Blue Heel Development, LLC  

9606 Bailey Rd. 

Suite 265 

Cornelius, NC 28031 

 

 

AGENT:   Henson Foley  

8712 Lindholm Dr. 

202 A 

Huntersville, NC 28078    

     

PROPERTY LOCATION: 10212 Washam Potts Rd.  

(PID#: 00509313)   

 

PROPERTY SIZE:  6.82 acres total 

 

CURRENT LAND USE: Single Family Home 

 

PROPOSED LAND USE:  Single Family Attached Homes (townhomes) 

 

EXISTING ZONING: NR (Neighborhood Residential)  

 

PROPOSED ZONING: CZ (Conditional Zoning) 

 

EXISTING CONDITIONS: 

 

1. Description of Adjoining Zoning and Land Uses – This property has approximately 245 feet 

of road frontage along Washam Potts Road. To the north are single family homes that are 

zoned NR (Neighborhood Residential). To the south and west this parcel directly touches 

the Oakhurst development zoned TN (Traditional Neighborhood).  Properties to the east are 

zoned NR (Neighborhood Residential) and are part of the Glenridge development. Both 

Oakhurst and Glenridge were developed in the late 1990’s and early 2000’s. In 2014, the 

Town adopted two different land use designations on Washam Potts based on existing 

development in the area.   

  

2. Topography – The property has a continuous slope towards the back end of the property. 

The back end of the property also includes a spring and wetlands.  

 

3. Vegetation – The majority of this property is covered with tree canopy. The applicant has is 

proposing undisturbed buffers as noted on the plan using existing trees towards the required 

buffer.  

 



4. Infrastructure – The applicant has provided a Charlotte Water Capacity Assurance form to 

ensure water and sewer capacity is available for the site. Currently, water and sewer access 

is available.  

 

 

STAFF COMMENTS: 

 

1. Project Overview - Matt Gallagher of Blue Heel Development, LLC is seeking to develop 

27 single family attached homes (townhomes) on the property located at 10212 Washam 

Potts Road. The townhomes are proposed to each have 4 bedrooms and 3 baths. 

 

2. History - This site currently includes one single family home that was built in 1936.  

 

3. Land Use Plan Consistency -The Land Use Plan adopted by the Town Board on January 6th, 

2014 designates this property as “Medium Density Residential,” which allows a maximum 

of 4 dwelling units an acre. This plan is consistent with the land use plan at 3.9 units per 

acre. 

 

4. Pre-Development Review Committee - The sketch plan was presented to the PDRC on 

March 4, 2019.  The plan proposed had 31 townhomes shown. The PDRC was generally 

supportive of the proposed development but asked that the applicant follow the Land Use 

Plan policy pertaining to density (4 units per acre).   

   

5. Community Meeting - The applicant held the required community meeting on Thursday, 

November 7, 2019. Around 20 citizens attended the meeting. They were concerned about 

the number of townhomes as well as traffic on Washam Potts. The residents in the Oakhurst 

neighborhood that abut the property had concerns about the buffer requirement and asked if 

a larger buffer could be provided.  

 

6. Transportation Advisory Board - The meeting was held on Tuesday November 19, 2019. 

The Board analyzed the capacity for the number of proposed townhomes on Washam Potts 

and determined that the added traffic won’t be detrimental to the area.  

 

7. Town Board Public Hearing #1 - The meeting was held Monday November 18, 2019. The 

applicant asked for a continuance do to a change in board members from the recent election 

on November 6th. The board continued the public hearing to Monday December 16, 2019.  

The citizens that were in attendance voiced concerns about the buffers, traffic, school 

overcrowding, the number of proposed units, and the type of housing being proposed.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

Staff recommends approval with conditions. The following conditions are listed below: 

 

1. Town approval is contingent on review and approval by other applicable local, state and 

federal agencies. 

 

2. The development shall comply with all other applicable requirements of the Town of 

Cornelius Land Development Code. 

 

3. Town approval incorporates and shall comply with any and all submittals in the case file and 

correspondence presented to the board in support of this application, including, but not 

limited to the following:  The site/sketch plan, architectural elevations, and any other 

information related to this case or improvements recommended by the Town and/or other 

agencies. 

 

4. The US Postal Service has notified the Town that all future subdivision approvals must 

utilize a community mail delivery system. Locations and details of the proposed community 

mailboxes must be included in the Construction Documents, and must be reviewed and 

approved by the Post Master for this area. The applicant(s) must provide the Town with 

written confirmation that the local Post Master is in agreement with the proposed box 

locations.  

 

5. Buffer areas not identified as undisturbed areas shall be designed and planted in accordance 

with the type “A” buffer planting requirements of the Land Development Code.  Amenities 

required as part of the improved open space requirements may not encroach into the 

required perimeter buffers. 

 

6. All undisturbed buffer areas are to be retained, but shall be supplemented, if necessary, with 

evergreen plantings.  Amenities required as part of the improved open space requirements 

may not encroach into the required undisturbed buffers. 

 

7. The maximum height of the townhomes must be 26’. This is to be measured from grade to 

the pitch of the roof.  

 

8. The pedestrian bridge that connects the proposed new public street sidewalks Glenhill Lane 

shall be maintained by the Washam Potts Townhome’s HOA and shall provide lighting in 

accordance with the Town of Cornelius lighting policy and the Land Development Code.  

 

9. The applicant will construct a 5’ sidewalk along Washam Potts Road for the entire length of 

the site.  
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SITE DATA
LOCATION: 10212 WASHAM POTTS RD  00509313

CORNELIUS, MECKLENBURG COUNTY 28031

ZONE:

USE:

CONTACT: HENSONFOLEY (JAY HENSON)
704-875-1615

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

EXISTING: NR

ITEM

LOT AREA

FEMA MAP NUMBER

FEMA EFFECTIVE DATE

WATERSHED
SOIL TYPE

PROVIDED

6.83 AC

3710464300K

09/02/2015

MCDOWELL

CeB2, HeB

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

IMPERVIOUS SUMMARY

ITEM SQUARE FOOT ACRES PERCENTAGE
OF TOTAL SITE

TOTAL SITE AREA 297514.80 6.83 N/A

EXISTING IMPERVIOUS 1497 0.03 0.50  %

PROPOSED BUILDING (BUA) 36,660  SF 0.8 12.32  %

PROPOSED ASPHALT (BUA) 27,402  SF 0.63  AC 9.21  %

PROPOSED CONCRETE (BUA) 9,493  SF 0.22  AC 3.19  %

TOTAL BUA 73,555  SF 1.69  AC 24.72  %

TOTAL PERVIOUS 223,959.80  SF 5.14  AC 75.28  %

MIN. FRONT SETBACK

MIN. SIDE SETBACK

MIN. REAR SETBACK 10' MINIMUM

5' MINIMUM

15' TO BUILDING
20' TO GARAGE

W

N

E

S

GRAPHIC SCALE 1"=60 FT.

0 30 60 120

NORTH ARROW

Z03

ITEM#

1

2

3

5

6

8

BUILDING SIZE

PARKING SPACES REQUIRED

PARKING SPACES PROVIDED

MIN. DRIVE AISLE WIDTH

MIN. DRIVEWAY RADIUS

BUILDING HEIGHTS

54 OFF STREET PARKING SPACES= 2 PER LOT

AS NOTED

AS NOTED

2 STORY (30 FT MAX.)

ITEM PROVIDED

ZONING CODE SUMMARY

7 HANDICAP SPACES NONE REQUIRED

35,100 SF TOTAL

1,300 SF EACH UNIT 1-27

SITE PLAN NOTES
1. NO CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY WILL BE ISSUED

UNTIL THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT IS IN
COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPROVED PLAN IN
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 9.9.3 OF THE TOWN
OF CORNELIUS

2. SITE LIGHTING WILL BE SUBMITTED AND APPROVED
AT TIME OF SITE PLAN REVIEW

3. SIGN PERMITS WILL BE PER SEPARATE SUBMITTAL
4. ARCHITECTURAL FOOTPRINT IS FOR

INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY. REFER TO
ARCHITECTS PLANS FOR FINAL LAYOUT AND
DIMENSIONS

5. ROLL OUT CONTAINERS WILL BE PLACED AT REAR
OF THE TOWNHOMES, SCREENING PROVIDED

6. OPEN SPACE WILL CONSIST OF A GRASSED AREA
WITH A DOG STATION AND SEATING

LOT AREA

OPEN SPACE REQUIRED

OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

6.83 AC (297,514 SF)

20% OF SITE = 59,502 SF

154,654 SF

ITEM PROVIDED

IMPROVED OPEN SPACE REQUIRED 25% OF REQUIRED OPEN SPACE = 14,875 SF

IMPROVED OPEN SPACE PROVIDED 19,809 SF

VICINITY MAP
SCALE: N.T.S. N

O
RT

H

SITE

SECTION A

SECTION B

SCALE : 1"=10'

SECTION B
SCALE : 1"=10'

SECTION A

TYPE D

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

-TREES SHALL RUN PARALLEL TO THE STREET WITHIN A PLANTING
STRIP OF CONSISTENT WIDTH LOCATED BETWEEN THE CURB AND
SIDEWALK.
-UNDERSTORY TREES SHALL BE PLACED 20' O.C.
-LARGE CANOPY TREES SHALL BE PLACED 40' O.C.

RESIDENTIAL DENSITY 3.9/UNITS PER ACRE
NOTE: NATURAL SURFACE TRAILS SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED AS A 5' WIDE, DIRT PATHWAY.
MULCH WILL BE APPLIED AS NEEDED.

RESIDENTIAL ATTACHED @ 2 PER HOME =
54 SPACES

OPEN SPACE REQUIREMENTS

ACCESSORY STRUCTURE SETBACK 10'

6'
 M

IN
.

6"

20' TO PROPERTY LINE

TOTAL LOTS 27

BLOCK/BRICK WALL

TYPE A-2 BUFFER
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TOTAL SITE AREA
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REASONABLENESS AND CONSISTENCY  

OF PROPOSED ZONING MAP AMENDMENTS 

 

REZ 10-19 Washam Potts Townhomes 

 

Blue Heel Development LLC, applicant, initiated the process to rezone and develop the 

property located at 10212 Washam Potts Road (PID 00509313), which consists of 6.8 

acres, to Conditional Zoning District as shown on Exhibit A, and to use the property in 

accordance with the conditions set forth in Exhibit B. 

 

The Planning Board considers the proposed plan to be reasonable and consistent with the 

Town of Cornelius Land Use Plan “Medium Density Residential” category in that 

townhomes are a primary land use that serves the greater community and the proposed 

plan is in the public interest.  

 

    

_________________________________ 

Keith Eicher, Planning Board Chair 

 
 

January 13, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Exhibit A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Exhibit B 

 
Conditions of REZ 10-19 

 

1. Town approval is contingent on review and approval by other applicable local, state 

and federal agencies. 

 

2. The development shall comply with all other applicable requirements of the Town 

of Cornelius Land Development Code. 

 

3. Town approval incorporates and shall comply with any and all submittals in the 

case file and correspondence presented to the board in support of this application, 

including, but not limited to the following:  The site/sketch plan, architectural 

elevations, and any other information related to this case or improvements 

recommended by the Town and/or other agencies. 

 

4. The US Postal Service has notified the Town that all future subdivision approvals 

must utilize a community mail delivery system. Locations and details of the 

proposed community mailboxes must be included in the Construction Documents, 

and must be reviewed and approved by the Post Master for this area. The 

applicant(s) must provide the Town with written confirmation that the local Post 

Master is in agreement with the proposed box locations.  

 

5. Buffer areas not identified as undisturbed areas shall be designed and planted in 

accordance with the type “A” buffer planting requirements of the Land 

Development Code.  Amenities required as part of the improved open space 

requirements may not encroach into the required perimeter buffers. 

 

6. All undisturbed buffer areas are to be retained, but shall be supplemented, if 

necessary, with evergreen plantings.  Amenities required as part of the improved 

open space requirements may not encroach into the required undisturbed buffers. 

 

7. The maximum height of the townhomes must be 26’. This is to be measured from 

grade to the pitch of the roof.  

 

8. The pedestrian bridge that connects the proposed new public street sidewalks 

Glenhill Lane shall be maintained by the Washam Potts Townhome’s HOA and 

shall provide lighting in accordance with the Town of Cornelius lighting policy and 

the Land Development Code.  

 

9. The applicant will construct a 5’ sidewalk along Washam Potts Road for the entire 

length of the site.  

 

 



 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 
 Print

Date of Meeting: January 13, 2020

To: Watershed Review Board Members

From: Catherine McElearney, Planner

Action Requested:

Review built upon area (BUA) averaging certificate applications and associated plats for the following properties:

BUA #1 -- 16717 Yardarm Lane (recipient)
BUA #2 -- 16612 Flying Jib Road (recipient)

Manager's Recommendation:

Review and approve BUA averaging certificates for the following properties:

BUA #1 -- 16717 Yardarm Lane (recipient)
BUA #2 -- 16612 Flying Jib Road (recipient)

 

ATTACHMENTS:
Name: Description: Type:

BUA_Averaging_Certificate_Application_16717_Yardarm.pdf BUA #1 16717 Yardarm Lane application Exhibit

 16717_Yardarm_Ln.jpg BUA #1 16717 Yardarm Lane aerial photo
(recipient)

Exhibit

 BUA_16717_Yardarm_Lane_plat.pdf BUA #1 16717 Yardarm Lane plat Exhibit
 18632_Nantz_Road.jpg BUA #1 and #2 donor lot Exhibit
 Donor_Deed_PID_00186161.pdf BUA #1 and #2 donor deed Exhibit

BUA_Averaging_Certificate_Application_16612_Flying_Jib.pdf BUA #2 16612 Flying Jib application Exhibit

 16612_Flying_Jib_Road_(recipient).jpg BUA #2 16612 Flying Jib aerial photo (recipient) Exhibit
 BUA_16612_Flying_Jib_plat.pdf BUA #2 16612 Flying Jib plat Exhibit
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